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July 25, 2017 

Mr. Mark Detterman 
Alameda County Health Agency 
1131 Harbor Bay Parkway, #250 
Alameda, CA  94502 
 
RE:  Former Paco Pump Site, 9201 San Leandro Street, Oakland, CA   

Case #: RO 000320 
 
Dear Mr. Detterman, 
 
Thank you for meeting with us on April 15, 2016 regarding the former Paco Pump site.   

This work plan and summary presents the issues discussed at the meeting and our understanding of 
the resolution of said issues. This work plan also is meant to address your April 19, 2017 letter. Figure 
1 illustrates the location of each area discussed. 

1. Area 5  - Vicinity of well MW-4 in eastern building 

Issues:  Elevated hydrocarbon concentrations in soil gas in former soil vapor sampling point SV6; 
potential former UST near northeast corner of former building and dissolved hydrocarbon concentration 
in well MW-4. 
     Proposed Tasks: 

• Resampling of soil gas probes SV-6, SV-7, SV-8; 

• Collection of two indoor air samples in the eastern building, including one location near  
SV-6; 

• Collection of three grab groundwater samples aligned in a north-south transect between 
MW-4 and the western edge of the eastern building. 

o This includes logging borings per the USCS, and collecting one groundwater grab 
sample per boring.  

o Grab groundwater samples will be collected by advancing a macro-core direct push 
rod to a maximum depth of 20 feet; actual depth and screened interval will be 
determined by a field geologist. A 3/4-inch temporary well casing and screen will be 
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placed in the boring. A groundwater sample will be collected with a disposable bailer 
or a peristaltic pump with disposable tubing. Temporary well screens will be placed in 
a manner consistent with MW-4.  

o Grab groundwater samples will be analyzed for volatile organic compounds and total 
petroleum hydrocarbons as diesel and gasoline.  

These tasks are designed to address potential vapor intrusion concerns and potential dissolved 
hydrocarbons in groundwater in the western part of the eastern building. 
 
 

2. Area 4 - Former UST Area, vicinity of wells MW-3 
In November of 2016, Apex-SGI contracted with Subdynamic Locating Services, Inc. to perform a 
geophysical survey. The survey was conducted to locate and verify the presence of UST(s) within Area 
4. Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR), metal detection, and line locating techniques were employee to 
establish the location of UST(s). No GPR signatures consistent with UST presence or backfill were 
found. There were no UST(s) detectable during the geophysical survey, therefore it is assumed that 
either the UST(s) were removed or were not present on the property. An attempt to find monitoring 
wells MW-3 and E-8 was also made at the time of the geophysical survey. Wells MW-3 and E-8 were 
not found during the geophysical survey, and therefore, will need to be replaced.  
 
In February of 2017, Apex-SGI contracted with Cornerstone Environmental Contractors of Concord, 
California to pothole two potholes in order to confirm the lack of UST presence. Potholes were no more 
than 4 feet deep. Soils were found to be similar to that of native with various buried debris. Slight visual 
staining was visible in soil. There were no olfactory signs of contamination in these potholes. No UST(s) 
were found, nor was there evidence of UST backfill (pea-gravel or otherwise) in these potholes. 
Potholes were backfilled with clean fill.  Wastes from these potholes was stockpiled, covered and 
analyzed and subsequently found to be non-hazardous waste.  
 
Issues:  Residual petroleum hydrocarbon groundwater and soil concentrations and potential vapor 
intrusion at the south end of western building. 
 

Proposed Tasks: 
 

• Replacement of former monitoring wells MW-3 and E-8; 

• Indoor air testing from two locations in the western building; 

• Install additional downgradient well (proposed well MW-13; discussed in point number 5 
below); 

• If the new downgradient well is significantly contaminated and indoor air testing fails, then 
excavate and dispose contaminated soil to groundwater near MW-3/Former UST, backfilling 
with clean fill to remove accessible secondary source of hydrocarbons. 
 
 
 



 

3. Area 4 – Vicinity of Wells E-3, E-5, E-2, E-6, Southern End of Western Building 
Issue:  Elevated dissolved TPH-motor oil detected during previous groundwater monitoring events. 

 
Comments: 

• Potential vapor intrusion;  

• The TPH-motor oil concentration in well E-3 (590,000 µg/l) decreases very rapidly 
downgradient to well E-5 (11,000 µg/l) (located about 12 feet to the west), and decreases 
again downgradient to wells E-2 (720 µg/L) and E-6 (750 µg/l), each located another 15 feet 
west.  Concentrations at boundary sentinel monitoring wells MW-9 (non-detect at <300 µg/L) 
and MW-10 (1,300 µg/l) located another 65 to 75 feet downgradient, respectively, are both 
estimated values below the laboratory reporting limit.  This steep decrease indicates a rapid 
lateral attenuation with no significant risk of off-site impact; 

• Soil concentrations of hydrocarbons reported during drilling of wells E-2, E-3, E-5, and E-6 
indicate a possible source remaining in the area.   

• If a source of TPH-motor oil is/was located in the vicinity of well E-6, it likely predates the 
building construction (pre-1946, per aerial photos), confirming the limited migration of 
hydrocarbons over a more than 70-year period. 

 
Proposed Tasks: 

• No additional subsurface investigation; 

• Collection of two indoor air samples to evaluate vapor intrusion risk in the western building. 
4. Area 2 Soil 

Issue: Soil samples taken in the vicinity of wells MW-10 and MW-11 in September 2014 contained 
PCBs above the ESL for commercial/industrial worker of 1.0 mg/kg. 
Proposed Tasks: 

• Sampling of soil in a grid pattern (up to six borings)  in the alley between the fence and 
building, encompassing the area approximately between MW-10 to MW-5, ranging in depth 
from one (1)-foot bgs to the top of groundwater at approximately six (6) to nine (9) feet bgs.  
Total depth would be dependent upon the groundwater depth at the time of sampling. 

• Evaluate the volume of soil with PCBs greater than the San Francisco Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (SF RWQCB) environmental screening level (ESL) for commercial/industrial 
worker exposure of 1.0 mg/kg.  Based on the findings, we will propose either 1) full soil 
excavation, or 2) shallow soil excavation and a deed restriction for deeper soil. 
 

5. Area 2 – Wells MW-9, MW-12 
Issue: Potential data gap between groundwater migration sentinel wells MW-9 and MW-12. 
Proposed Task: 

• Install a new well (MW-13) mid-point between MW-9 and MW-12 to fill the gap. 





1


	RO-0000320_WorkPlan_2017-07-25.pdf
	Signature Page
	Fig.1-Site Plan.pdf



